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CITY OF BATON ROUGE 
PARISH OF EAST BATON ROUGE 

ON BEHALF OF THE  
GREATER BATON ROUGE METROPOLITAN AIRPORT DISTRICT 

 
March 27, 2025 

 
ADDENDUM NO. 1 

 
TO: ALL BIDDERS 
 

RUNWAY 13/31 SAFETY AREA AND RPZ IMPROVEMENTS  
PHASE II DEMOLITION 

 
BID DATE: TUESDAY, APRIL 8, 2025 @ 2:00 P.M. 
 
The following revisions shall be incorporated in and take precedence over any conflicting part of the 
original Contract Documents. 
 
 
PRE-BID CONFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
There was a MANDATORY Pre-Bid Conference held on Tuesday, March 25, 2025 at 10:00 AM.   
Attached is the Sign-In Sheet numbered AD1-4 thru AD1-7 and the Agenda numbered AD1-8 thru AD1-9. 
 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
Technical Specifications, Division I, Page I-97, Bid Bond:  Two copies of this document were included in 
the specifications.  Retain one copy of this page and delete the duplicate page in its entirety. 
 

CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS 
Drawings, Sheet No. G002, General Information:  Delete this sheet in its entirety and replace it with 
sheet No. G002 numbered AD1-10.  The Sheet Index has been added to the sheet. 
 

BIDDER QUESTIONS 
Q1. Does the environmental consultant have any HMA drawings showing exactly where the asbestos 

material is? 
A1. Appendix A of the Specifications contains all inspection and analysis performed on these 

facilities and no mapping /drawings were provided. 

Q2. Is there an estimated quantity of each asbestos material for bidding purposes? 
A2. Estimated number of samples containing ACM are located throughout the report and photo 

documentation is provided also within the report in Appendix A - Environmental 
Assessment Information Available to Bidders in the specifications.  
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Q3. Can we walk the inside of the buildings again before bid date? 
A3. The mandatory site visit took place after the Mandatory Pre-Bid and was the only opportunity 

bidders had to get within the buildings. 
 
Q4. Will power and water be turned on during the abatement? 
A4. Bidders should take into account there is no guarantee of any electrical power or water at any 

of the buildings proposed for demolition. 
 
Q5. Will owner provide third party air monitoring? 
A5. Third Party air monitoring required to meet the requirements of the LADEQ are the 

responsibility of the Bidders. 
 
Q6. Plans under general notes call for a project sign, but nowhere in the specs does it give a design 

for it.  
A6. Delete all references to a project sign being required. 
 
Q7. Plans state that the architect has the other documents and plans of the building. Do they have 

as-builts?  
A7. Delete all references to the A/E having any As-Built information on any of the facilities to be 

demolished on this project scope as none is available. 
 
Q8. The light poles in the staging area that gets removed, are we required to pour concrete back in 

those areas?  
A8. The light poles and pole foundations to be removed shall be backfilled in accordance with 

General Note No. 9 on Sheet G003 – General Notes . 
 
Q9. We understand that the specs call for fencing around the whole site, that any fence onsite 

removed is to be returned to owner. Is the fence and vacuum systems still required salvaged 
items?  

A9. The existing fencing surrounding the project site should be removed after demolition 
operations are completed on all facilities and returned to the Owner. Any remaining 
equipment at the car wash shall be removed and hauled off by the Contractor. 

 
Q10. Utilities specs call for rerouting utilities if encountered and removal of utilities back to the 

property line if necessary. Is the sprinkler system a loop system? We don’t know where the 
street lights are powered from.  No utilities are showing up on the plans.  Other than disconnect 
and removing utilities back to the source and capped. Will there be a change order for any 
rerouting or repowering utilities?  

A10. Every effort should be made to identify and discover the location of existing utilities on the 
project site and capping of these utilities at the property line. There is no information 
available on any utilities on the project site and there is no intent by the Owner to repower 
any utilities only to remove them from the project site and abandonment of the utility at the 
source near the property line.  
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Q11. Do you have a list of any DBE certified contractors that you can require? If not, where can I 
obtain a list of DBE certified contractors?  

A11. DBE certified contractors can be found through the DOTD website and other municipalities 
within the area, as MOVEBR the East Baton Rouge Parish road program, maintains a library of 
qualified and certified DBE contractors. The Airport Authority utilizes Mr. Kennyata Sparks to 
verify DBE certifications and DBE requirements and could also be a useful resource.  He can be 
reached at (225) 362-9543. 

 
Q12. Per Section 00312: Environmental Assessment Information Available to Bidders which I 

have attached to this page. Will we have the opportunity to go in and conduct our own full 
survey on the job? As it sits, nobody has enough information to be able to accurately bid 
this job. If we cannot conduct our own full survey and bid the job with the information in the 
bid package, and we encounter additional ACM not included in the bid package will a 
change order be granted?  

A12. The Bidders were given the opportunity to visit the site at the Mandatory Pre-Bid 
Conference and no further site visits will be provided. The Environmental Consultant 
took representative samples based off prior experience in similar demolitions and 
assessments and felt comfortable with the results provided, including approximate 
location of ACM, in the report labeled Appendix A – Environmental Assessment 
Information Available to Bidders in the specifications. 
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MANDATORY PRE-BID CONFERENCE AND SITE VISIT MEETING MINUTES 

RUNWAY 13/31 SAFETY AREA & RPZ IMPROVEMENTS 
PHASE II DEMOLITION 

A.I.P. No. 3-22-0006-116-2020

10:00 AM Tuesday, March 25, 2025 

Meeting Location:  Airport Terminal Conference Room – First Floor 
Project Location:  Baton Rouge Metropolitan Airport 

Sponsor: Greater Baton Rouge Airport District 

Sponsor’s Representative: Alan Krouse, Program Manager, AMG 
Phone: 225-358-4240 Fax: 225-358-4261 

Design A/E: Meyer Engineers, Ltd. 
Raymond G. Hartley, P.E., Client Manager 
Phone: 504-427-0864 
Kevin Kinchen, Lead Architect 
Marco Perez, Project Architect 

Attendees: See attached scans 

GENERAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS: 
1. General Type of Work – Demolition of existing buildings detailed and located in the plans

including removal of all asbestos (report located in specifications), lead containing or
hazardous material, concrete paving, light poles and associated foundations including
disposal and hauling.

2. Contract Provisions
a. Plans and Specifications are available online at www.centralbidding.com ;

Also available from:
Meyer Engineers, Ltd. 
4937 Hearst Street 
Suite 1B 
Metairie, LA  70001 
504-885-9892

Bid Opening: 
Time & Date: 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 8, 2025 

b. Instructions to Bidders
c. Electronic Bidding
d. Bid Forms
e. Addenda, if any
f. Contract Forms
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3. Project Detail:
a. Contract Duration (300 calendar days)
b. Contractor Coordination with AMG / Meyer
c. Phasing / Project Lay down as shown in plans
d. Permitting
e. Air Space Requirements – 7460 Determination currently underway

1. No equipment shall be utilized that extends beyond 60’-0” in height on
this project site.

4. Miscellaneous Notes
c. Items located within the buildings and demolition limits belong to the contractor
d. Please submit all questions in written email format to Meyer Engineers, Ltd. at

meyer@meyer-e-l.com by 5:00 pm CDT Wednesday, March 26, 2025. They will be
reviewed and responded to in an addendum, if applicable.

5. Questions from Bidders
Q1. What is the estimated construction cost? 
A1. The estimated range is between $1.5-2 million. 

Q2. Are there any allowances? 
A2. There are no allowances. 

Q3. Will we need a TWIC card? 
A3. A TWIC card will not be required. 

Site Visit 
Q4. Are the light posts’ associated foundations being demolished as well? 
A4. Yes. 

Q5. Will there be any equipment needed to be salvaged for the owner? 
A5. No, all items within the limits of demolition will be under the contractor’s discretion. 

Note 1: The car wash within the limits of demolition was not visited due to fencing; 
however, bidders were made aware that the owner has removed all relevant contents. 

Note 2: All foundations and structural elements associated with each building within the 
limits of demolition is to be removed. 

Note 3.  Upon removal of concrete foundations and parking lot area the Contractor is 
responsible for leveling of the ground surfaces in a way that will promote positive drainage 
into the appropriate drainage channels within the project site area. 

AD1 - 9



FIRE EXTINGUISHER CAB.
FACE OF FOUNDATION
FIRE HOSE CABINET
FINISH
FLOOR
FLASHING
FLOORING
FLUORESCENT

FACE OF CONCRETE
FACE OF FINISH
FACE OF STUDS
FEET PER MINUTE
FIRE PROOF
FIRE RATED
FULL SIZE
FOOT OR FEET
FOOTING
FURRING
FUTURE

GAUGE
GALLON
GALVANIZED
GRAB BAR
GRADE LINE
GLASS
GROUND
GALLONS PER MINUTE
GRADE
GYPSUM

HOSE BIB
HOLLOW CORE
HANDICAPPED
HARDWOOD
HARDWARE
HOLLOW METAL
HORIZONTAL
HOUR
HEIGHT

INSIDE DIAMETER
INSULATION
INTERIOR
INVERT

JANITOR
JUNCTION BOX
JOINT

KITCHEN

LABORATORY
LAMINATE
LAVATORY
POUND
LIGHT
LINEAR
LOCKER
LIVE LOAD
LEFT

MAXIMUM
MEDICAL CABINET

MECH.
MEMB.
MFR.
MH.
MIN.
MIR.
MISC.
M.K.J.
M.O.
M.P.H.
MBLT.
M.T.
MTL.
MTD.
MUL.

N.
N/A
N.I.C.
NO. or #
NOM.
N.T.S.

O.A.
OBS.
O.C.
O.D.
OFF.
OPNG.
OPP.

PL.
P.LAM.
PLAS.
PLYWD.
P.M.S.
PNL.
POS.
PR.
PRCST.

MECHANICAL
MEMBRANE
MANUFACTURER
MANHOLE
MINIMUM
MIRROR
MISCELLANEOUS
METAL-KEYED JOINT
MASONRY OPENING
MILES PER HOUR
MARBLE THRESHOLD
METAL THRESHOLD
METAL
MOUNTED
MILLION

NORTH
NOT APPLICABLE
NOT IN CONTRACT
NUMBER
NOMINAL
NOT TO SCALE

OVERALL
OBSCURE
ON CENTER
OUTSIDE DIAMETER
OFFICE
OPENING
OPPOSITE

PLATE
PLASTIC LAMINATE
PLASTER
PLYWOOD
PRE-FINISHED METAL SIDING
PANEL
POSITIVE
PAIR
PRE-CAST

PREFABRICATED
PRE-FINISHED
POINT
PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER
COMBINATION PAPER TOWEL
DISPENSER & RECEPTACLE
PARTITION
PAPER TOWEL RECEPTACLE

QUARRY TILE
QUART
QUARTER
QUANTITY
QUARTER-ROUND

RISER

RADIUS
REINF. CONC. PIPE
ROAD
ROOF DRAIN
REFERENCE
REFRIGERATOR
REGISTER
REINFORCED
REQUIRED
RESILIENT
ROOM
RANGE
ROUGH OPENING
REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE
RIGHT
REDWOOD
RAIN WATER LEADER

SOUTH
SUSPENDED ACOUS. TILE
SOLID CORE
SEAT COVER DISPENSER
SCHEDULE
SOAP DISPENSER
SYSTEM
SECTION
SHELF
SHOWER
SHEET
SIMILAR
SANITARY NAPKIN DISPENSER
SANITARY NAPKIN RECEPTACLE

SPECIFICATION(S)
SQUARE
STAINLESS STEEL
SERVICE SINK
STATION
STANDARD
STEEL
STORAGE
STRUCTURAL
SUSPENDED
SYMMETRICAL

TEE
TOP OD CASTING
TOP OF CONCRETE
TRANSFORMER
TREAD
TOWEL BAR
TOP OF CURB
TELEPHONE
TERRAZZO
TONGUE & GROOVE
THICK

PREFAB.
PREFIN.
PT.
P.T.D.
P.T.D./R.

PTN.
P.T.R.

Q.T.
QT.
QTR.
QUANT.
1/4 RD.

R.

RAD.
RDP.
RD.
R.D.
REF.
REFR.
RGTR.
REINF.
REQ.
RESIL.
RM.
RNG.
R.O.
R.P.M.
RT.
RWD.
R.E.L.

S.
S.A.T.
S.C.
S.C.D.
SCHED.
S.D.
SYS.
SECT.
SH.
SHR.
SHT.
SIM.
S.N.D.
S.N.R.

SPEC.
SQ.
S.ST.
S.SK.
STA.
STD.
STL.
STOR.
STRL.
SUSP.
SYM.

T.
T/C

TRANS.
TRD.
T.B.
T/C
TEL.
TER.
T.&G.
THK.
T/P
T.P.D.
T/S
T.V.
T/W
TYP.

UNF.
U.O.N.
UR.

V.
V.C.T.
VERT.
VEST.
VOL.
VOJ.
V.W.C

W.
W/
W.C.
WD.
W.H.
W/O
WP.
WSCT.
WT.
W.G.

YD.

TOP OF PAVEMENT
TOILET PAPER DISPENSER
TOP OF STEEL
TELEVISION
TOP OF WALL
TYPICAL

UNFINISHED
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
URINAL

VOLTS
VINYL COMPOSITION TILE
VERTICAL
VESTIBULE
VOLUME
VERIFY ON JOB
VINYL WALL COVERING

WEST
WITH
WATER CLOSET
WOOD
WATER HEATER
WITHOUT
WATER PROOF
WAINSCOT
WEIGHT
WATER GAGE

YARD

F.E.C.
F.F.
F.H.C.
FIN.
FL.
FLASH.
FLG.
FLOUR.

F.O.C.
F.O.F.
F.O.S
F.P.M.
FPRF.
F.R.
F.S.
FT.
FTG.
FURR.
FUT.

GA.
GAL.
GALV.
G.B.
G.L.
GL.
GND.
G.P.M
GR.
GYP.

H.B.
H.C.
H/C
HDWD.
HDWE.
H.M.
HORIZ.
HR.
HGT.

I.O.
INSUL.
INT.
INV.

JAN.
J.B.
JT.

KIT.

LAB.
LAM.
LAV.
LB.
LT.
LIN.
LKR.
LL.
LT.

MAX.
M.C.

 GRAPHIC SYMBOL LEGEND

 SHEET INDEX
G001 TITLE SHEET
G002 GENERAL INFORMATION
D001 DEMOLITION SITE PLAN
G003 GENERAL NOTES
G004 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOGRAPHS - BLDG 1A/SITE
G005 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOGRAPHS - BLDG 1B
G006 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOGRAPHS - BLDG 1B
G007 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOGRAPHS - BLDG 1C/1E
G008 EXISTING CONDITIONS PHOTOGRAPHS - BLDG 1D

PLAN
NORTH

X
XXXX

PHOTOGRAPH NUMBER

PHOTOGRAPH SHEET NUMBER

PXXX
PARTITION TYPE
REFERENCE NO. FOR WALL PARTITION TYPE REFER TO
PARTITION SCHEDULE. (NO SYMBOL AT STD.
PARTITION)

REVISION
CLOUD AROUND REVISION (OPTIONAL IF
REFEREEING TO GENERAL REVISION)

DOOR SYMBOL

WINDOW TYPE
LETTERS "I" AND "O" ARE OMITTED INTENTIONALLY

AREA OF DETAIL

ENLARGED DETAIL

DETAIL
INDICATES SECTION OR DETAIL NO. 3 APPEARING
ON SHEET 26

XX

XX

XX

3/26

GRID LINES
FOR SURVEYOR'S GRID,
ETC.
MODULE GRID, ETC..

ROOM IDENTIFICATION

MATCH LINE
SHADED PORTION IS THE
SIDE CONSIDERED

WORK POINT,
CONTROL POINT, OR
DATUM POINT

COLUMN LINE
LETTERS IN ONE
DIRECTION NUMBERS IN
THE OTHER DIRECTION

XX

SECTION LINE

EQUIPMENT TYPE

INDICATES SCALE

XX
XXXX

XXX
XXX

SHEET WHERE SECTION IS
DRAWN

SHEET NUMBER ON WHICH THIS SECTION OR DETAIL IS
CUT OR REFERENCED (ONE SHEET ONLY)

SHEET NUMBER ON WHICH THIS SECTION OR DETAIL
IS DRAWN

SECTION OR DETAIL NO.

EQUIPMENT GROUP

TYPE OF EQUIPMENT
X=X-RAY; F=FOOD
SERVICE

ROOM NUMBER
ROOM NAME

SECTION IDENTIFICATION

XXX XXXXXXXXXXXX

DETAIL NUMBER

SHEET NUMBER ON
WHICH ENLARGED
DETAIL IS DRAWN

SHEET WHERE
ELEVATION IS DRAWN

ELEVATION
IDENTIFICATION

A100 G002 SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"
T I T L E1

1

A

PXXX

X
XXXX

X
XXXX

PROJECT SITE

&
L
@
℄
Ø
#
ACOUS.
ACT.
ADD.
A.D.
ADJ.
A.F.F.
AGGR.
AL.
ALT.
APPROX.
APT.
ARCH.
ASB.
ASPH.
AVE.
AVG.

BD.
BITUM.
BLDG.
BLK.
BLKG.
B.L.
BM.
B.M.
BOT.
BRG.
BRS.
BRZ.
B&S.

CAB.
C.B.
CEM.
CER.
C.F.M.
C.G.
C.I.
C.J.
C.S.P.
CLG.
CLKG.
CLO.
CLR.
C.M.U.
CMTR.
C.O.
COL.
CONC.
CONN.

AND
ANGLE
AT
CENTERLINE
DIAMETER OR ROUND
POUND OR NUMBER
ACOUSTICAL
ACTUAL
ADDENDUM
AREA DRAIN
ADJUSTABLE
ABOVE FINISHED FLOOR
AGGREGATE
ALUMINUM
ALTERNATIVE
APPROXIMATE
APARTMENT
ARCHITECTURAL
ASBESTOS
ASPHALT
AVENUE
AVERAGE

BOARD
BITUMINOUS
BUILDING
BLOCK
BLOCKING
BUILDING LINE
BEAM
BENCH MARK
BOTTOM
BEARING
BRASS
BRONZE
BELL & SPIGOT

CABINET
CATCH BASIN
CEMENT
CERAMIC
CUBIC FEET PER MINUTE
CORNER GUARD
CAST IRON
CONTRACTION JOINT
CORRUGATED STEEL PIPE
CEILING
CAULKING
CLOSET
CLEAR
CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT
COUNTER
CLEAN OUT
COLUMN
CONCRETE
CONNECTION

CONSTR.
CONT.
ORR.
CTSK.
CTR.
CU.FT.
CU.YD.

DLB.
DEPT.
D.F.
DET.
DIA.
DIM.
DISP.
DN.
D.O.
DR.
DWR.
DS.
D.S.P.
DTL
DWG.

E.
EA.
E.I.F.S

E.J.
EL.
ELEC.
ELEV.
EMER.
ENCL.
E.P.
EQ.
EQPT.
E.W.C.
EXIST.
EXPO.
EXP.
EXT.

F.A.
F.B.
F.D.
FDN.
F.E.

CONSTRUCTION
CONTINUOUS
CORRIDOR
COUNTERSUNK
CENTER
CUBIC FEET
CUBIC YARDS

DOUBLE
DEPARTMENT
DRINKING FOUNTAIN
DETAIL
DIAMETER
DIMENSION
DISPENSER
DOWN
DOOR OPENING
DOOR
DRAWER
DOWNSPOUT
DRY STANDPIPE
DETAIL
DRAWING

EAST
EACH
EXTERIOR INSULATION &
FINISH SYSTEM
EXPANSION JOINT
ELEVATION
ELECTRICAL
ELEVATOR
EMERGENCY
ENCLOSURE
ELECTRICAL PANELBOARD
EQUAL
EQUIPMENT
ELECTRIC WATER COOLER
EXISTING
EXPOSED
EXPANSION
EXTERIOR

FIRE ALARM
FLAT BAR
FLOOR DRAIN
FOUNDATION
FIRE EXTINGUISHER

 ABBREVIATIONS

MATERIALS LEGEND
ELEVATION

PLAN or SECTION

BRICK CERAMIC TILE

CONCRETE or PLASTER GLAZING

MASONRY (STACKED BOND) SHEET METAL

WOOD

ACOUSTICAL TILE BRICK

CERAMIC TILE CONCRETE

CONC. MASONRY UNITS EARTH

FLOORING, RESILIENT GYPSUM BOARD or PLASTER

GYPSUM SHEATHING INSULATION, BATT

METAL (LARGE SCALE) INSULATION, RIGID

METAL (SMALL SCALE) PLYWOOD

SAND FILL SHELL FILL

TERRAZZO TILE ON CONCRETE

WOOD, FINISHED WOOD, ROUGH

LOCATION MAP - NOT TO SCALE

PLAN
NORTH

VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE

DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS DETAILED AND LOCATED
IN THE PLANS. ALL WALLS, FLOORS, AND ASSOCIATED
STRUCTURAL MEMBERS ARE TO BE DEMOLISHED AND HAULED
OFF. CONCRETE PAVING AS INDICATED IN THE DRAWINGS AS
WELL AS ALL LIGHT POSTS AND ASSOCIATED FOUNDATIONS
ARE TO BE DEMOLISHED AND HAULED OFF.

- HANCOCK WHITNEY: 8166 PLANK ROAD, BATON ROUGE,
LA 70811

- PLANK CROSSING: 8150-8190 PLANK ROAD, BATON
ROUGE, LA 70811

- K & J CARWASH: 4745 HOOPER ROAD, BATON ROUGE, LA
70811

- CAJUN COWBOY: 8194 PLANK ROAD, PARCEL A, BATON
ROUGE, LA 70811
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